CORK COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the March Kanturk / Mallow Municipal District meeting held on Friday 3rd June 2022 at 10.30a.m. Via MS Teams.

PRESENT:

In the chair: Cllr. Gearoid Murphy.

Councillors: Pat Hayes, Liam Madden, Gerard Murphy, Tony O'Shea, Ian Doyle, John Paul O'Shea, Bernard Moynihan, James Kennedy.

IN ATTENDANCE:

Mary P. Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Municipal District Operations & Rural Development, Matthew Farrell, Municipal District Officer, Dennis O'Regan Senior Executive Engineer, Andreana Sheehan Executive Engineer, Donal O'Carroll Executive Engineer, Billy Dennehy Executive Engineer, Sharon Creig Mallow Chamber, Anita Leader, Meetings Administrator.

VOTES OF SYMPATHY

Votes of Sympathy were passed for the following: George O'Malley, Kanturk Mallow MD. on the death of his father.

1. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES / DEIMHNIÚ IONTUAIRISCÍL

 a) Confirmation and signing of Minutes of the May Monthly meeting of Kanturk/ Mallow Municipal District held on Friday 6th May 2022 at 10.30 a.m. Via MS Teams.
 Proposed Cllr. Pat Hayes, Seconded Cllr. Gerard Murphy.

2. SECTION 183 - DISPOSAL NOTICE

- a) To Consider the Disposal of Land at Annabella, Mallow, Co Cork Land measuring 0.5941 hectares (1.4681 acres) to Sayvale 18 Ltd c/o Vistra Ireland for the consideration of €210,000. **Proposed Cllr. Pat Hayes, Seconded Cllr. Gearoid Murphy.**
- b) To consider the Discharge of Covenant with Cork County Council registered on Folio CK11155F, Part 3, No. 2, over lands at Cloghanora, Newtownshandrum, Co Cork. Covenant registered against lands owned by Patrick Drinan. Patrick McCarthy & Goretti McCarthy are current owners of affected lands. Proposed Cllr Gerard Murphy, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.
- c) To consider the Disposal of site at Ballysallagh Industrial Estate, Charleville to BCD Engineering Ltd measuring c.0. Hectares for the consideration of €70,000.
 Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. Gerard Murphy.
- d) To consider the Disposal of site at Site No 7, Pairc An Claonan, Freemount, Co Cork Site measuring 0.054 hectares (0.135 acres) as outlined on Map (part of Folio CK91798F) to David & Gretel Laird for the consideration of €25,000.
 Proposed Cllr. Gerard Murphy, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.

- e) To consider the Disposal of site at Site No 17, Pairc An Claonan, Freemount, Co Cork. Site measuring 0.053 hectares (0.132 acres) as outlined on Map (part of Folio CK91798F) to Anthony Heaney for the consideration of €25,000.
 Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. Gerard Murphy.
- f) To consider the Disposal of site at Site No 5, Kingwilliamstown, Ballydesmond, Co Cork Site measuring 0.083 hectares (0.205 acres) as outlined on Map (part of Folio CK21961) to Kim Heffernan for the consideration of €16,300.
 Proposed Cllr. Gerard Murphy, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.

3. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF OFFICERS

a) Matthew Farrell MDO Municipal District Officers Report. Full Report circulated.

The MDO sought members approval for the following.

Repurposing – Amenity Grant 2022 CFS401297260 - Cork International Film Festival Grant allocation - €500. Request to change proposal to creating signage & resource materials for Interntional Youth Film & Mental Health Programme which is to take place in Mallow in October 2022.

Proposed Cllr. Tony O' Shea, Seconded Cllr. Liam Madden.

Mallow TDF:	€5,566.00	Painting Scheme 2022, additional funds, 9 Applicants
Kanturk TDF:	€2269.26	Painting Scheme 2022, additional funds, 11 Applicants
Charleville TDF:	€860.09	Painting Scheme 2022, additional funds, 5 Applicants
Reserve TDF:	€139.91	Charleville Painting Scheme 2022
Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. Gerard Murphy.		

The extension of current pay parking measures in Mallow town be extended to Friday 1st July, the date of the next KMMD meeting. **Proposed Cllr. Liam Madden, Seconded Cllr. Tony O' Shea.**

Following the MDO report the SEO stated that planning permission is in place to carry out

Following the MDO report the SEO stated that planning permission is in place to carry out works to Spa house Grounds, however a budget is not currently in place. The tourist office is to relocate to the refurbished Spa House to facilitate works at Mallow Town Hall Theatre when budget allows. Safe access to the site will be necessary. The SEO encouraged the members to visit the building to witness the superb job and quality of work done by Finbarr Jones in coordinating the works. The bigger project cannot be undertaken but certain immediate works need to be carried out to ensure safe access. CCC is looking at prioritising elements of the works which would include Refurbishing the Driveway and replacing the paving around Spa House to limestone paving similar to Tipp O' Neill Park. The SEO stated that due to the fact there is no budget for these works she asked the members to consider funding the works from budgets within the control of the Kanturk/ Mallow MD i.e Pay Parking Dividend or The Town Development Fund. Approval in principal of between 50,000 and 60,000 Euro. A definitive

figure will be brought to members when available.

Cllr. Gearoid Murphy sought clarification if approval is being sought today or is this a briefing for July's meeting.

Response: The SEO stated that approval in principal to the allocation of between 50,000 and 60,000 euro is being sought today.

Cllr. Gearoid Murphy said while he supports the development it is his opinion that advance notice should be given prior to the meeting in order to approve large sums of money and requested the opinion of members.

Cllr. Pat Hayes fully supported the motion. Wants the work completed as soon as possible to take advantage of the summer.

Cllr. Gerard Murphy supports the development, queried if money is coming from the Town Development fund will this affect all towns across the MD or is it confined to Mallow. **Response SEO:** Funding will be taken specifically from the Mallow Town Development Fund.

Cllr. Liam Madden Supports the development, queried in relation to pay parking dividend are the funds there.

Response SEO: Money was ringfenced previously towards consultants' fees for plan for Mallow Castle grounds, Tipp O'Neill Park, Town Park and Spa House grounds. Alternative funds have been obtained to fund these consultants' fees. It is proposed to reallocate these funds now.

Cllr. Tony O' Shea Fully supports the proposal. Queried what the current balance is in the Pay Parking Fund and the Mallow TDF.

Response SEO: Full review on both currently ongoing. Proposed to bring these details to members in committee and discuss in full.

Members made the following observations / queries following the MD report.

Cllr. Gearoid Murphy Sought an update on Mallow Swimming Pool and Mallow Town Hall Development. Cllr. Murphy queried how long the detail design stage will take for the pool. **Response MDO:** Mallow Town hall is at the detail design stage. No further update as this is a significant body of work. Will request an update from the engineers and update members when available. Mallow Swimming pool was approved at full council he will seek an update and inform members.

Response SEO: A critical issue in relation to Mallow Town Hall Theatre was the fire escape this has now resolved. The SEO reminded members that there is no capital budget for this project and while it is at detail design stage it is dependent on getting a significant capital budget approved also with construction costs continuing to rise this is something, we need to be mindful of. However, work is progressing. In relation to Mallow swimming pool a tender for consultants to being forward to detail design which will advance in the coming days. A budget is in place to appoint the consultants to bring it to detail design stage once this is complete. Money must be secured to finance the capital works. The detail design stage will take a number of months due to the volume of work involved.

Cllr. John Paul O'Shea welcomed the works in Liscarroll and commended staff on the progress made in relation to Rockchapel Cemetery which is now at a part 10 application stage which was advertised yesterday. Cllr. O'Shea queried the status of a meeting request made to discuss Ballydesmond. He queried if a discussion will happen today in relation to the RRDF application or will there be a separate meeting. Cllr. O'Shea expressed the importance of holding a meeting in committee. He expressed his concerns in relation to a statement made by the minister stating that money allocated through the Rural Development Fund need to be spent ASAP and this money was granted 12 months ago. Capitalizing any unspent money. Cllr. O'Shea requested a report of any grant monies that were not spent. As members they approve these grants and it is important, they are made aware of the grants that are not drawn down.

Response MDO: In relation to Ballydesmond The Property Department are currently trying to secure land in relation to the proposed works. Work is progressing. The walk element is completed out the Newmarket Road.

Response SEO: Update given at last meeting. The SEO stated that when the consultants are appointed a meeting can be held with the members to discuss in greater detail.

Cllr. Liam Madden Queried Buttevant painting scheme. Sought an update on the canopies and coffee service at the castle.

Response MDO: Asked Cllr. Madden to contact him in relation to any queries he may have in relation to the painting scheme. The location of the canopies has not been secured. Discussions are ongoing. An agreement is in place in relation to a coffee service at the Castle. The MDO acknowledged there was no coffee service at the Castle last weekend due to personal circumstances of the vendor. This was a one off and service will continue as per the agreement going forward.

Response SEO: Current operator couldn't attend last week. The coffee service is under review. CCC may approach coffee vendors in the vicinity of Mallow to provide an adequate service throughout the summer.

Cllr. Pat Hayes The water feature in Tipp O'Neill Park isn't working can this be looked at. Caravan is parked out the Spa Road he queried if this could be investigated.

Response MDO: Aware of the mobile home. CCC are engaging with the family located there. All Procedures are being followed in accordance with CCC's policies and procedures. This is ongoing and progress is being made.

Response SEO: Aware of the issue with the water feature in Tipp O' Neill Park. An issue with the pump. The contractor that installed it has been made aware of the issue and is awaiting repair.

Cllr. Bernard Moynihan welcomed the footpath from Jacko's Cross. Cllr. Moynihan expressed his concerns in relation to the delays with the works in Ballydesmond. Cllr. Moynihan agrees with Cllr. John Paul O'Shea seeking an in-committee meeting. Cllr. Moynihan requested if a footpath could be considered from Ballydesmond out the Kiskeam Road.

Response SEO: assured both Cllr. Moynihan and O'Shea works are ongoing and advanced in certain areas behind the scenes in Ballydesmond. Ready to hit the ground running, the SEO said money is being spent and concerns the money will be lost unfounded.

b) Senior Executive Engineer Roads Report.

Dennis O'Regan SEE gave his report to members. The main points of the report were.

1. <u>Routine Works Completed include:</u>

- Road Patching/Pothole repair/Road edge repair (R578 Freemount)
- Gulley cleaning
- Culvert Cleaning (Charleville & Newton)
- Litter picking
- Bin Collection
- Road Sweeping
- Grass Cutting
- Engaging with Tidy Towns on collection of litter
- Bin installation works

Mallow Flood Relief Scheme:

- Cleaning of trash Screens
- Opening Culverts

2. <u>Planned Works Completed include:</u>

Road Drainage Works and associated TTM completed include:

- R579 Kanturk Newmarket
- R578 Newmarket Ballydesmond
- L1025 Ballyhoulihan
- L1002 Kiskeam
- L1036 Kilnahulla
- L1002 Knockyrourke
- L5461 Tullylease drainage repair works
- New Gulley installation in Charleville

Surface Dressing Works, to include for drainage preparation and associated TTM completed include:

- L5452 Freemount
- L5079 Pounds Cross to Gibbons Cross
- L1047 Hogans Cross to Kilbrin
- L5493 Kilbrin
- L1328 Buttevant
- L5519 Churchtown
- L5519 Ballincurrig
- 1020 Lismire
- R579 John Bridge
- LP1212 Dromahane/Thullery Rd (2nd seal)
- LP1210-0 / LP1210-17 Newberry to Thullery X
- LS 5386/5387 Greenhill to Monee

- L6819 Ballyhillogue
- L2951 Daly's X to Sixmilewater
- L2782 Glancam to Ballymartin
- LS5523 Boherash to Grange
- LP 1048/1201-85 Whittles X to Kilguilky
- LP1201 Cecilstown Rd to Coolnamagh X
- LS 5208 2nd Seal on Coolroemore, Lyre.

Wetmix Overlay Works and associated TTM include:

• LS1121 Roskeen to Banteer road with an estimated timeframe for completion of 2.5 weeks

Asphalt Works and associated TTM completed include:

- L-1204 Ballyclough Village
- R579 Nadd/Cork Road
- LP-1212 -- Glantane/Dromahane road (due to start on May 30th)
- Churchtown village blacktop L1320
- Newton village blacktop R515

Footpath Repairs and associated TTM include:

- Footpath repairs Newtown at Grotto in advance of blacktop overlay R515
- Number 39-41 Love Lane path repairs

Improvement Works include:

• Picnic area adjacent to N72 – Construction of concrete pads for new picnic tables and associated landscaping works

Notification of the following:

- The Contractor will be starting Grenagh Pedestrian Crossing works next week
- We will be advertising a Section 38 next week for
- Grenagh Traffic calming and extension of Footpath to the GAA Grounds
- Traffic Calming for Newtwopothouse, Ballyclough & Bweeng.

Following the SEE report the members made the following observations / raised the

Cllr. Gearoid Murphy queried if the traffic calming scheme is started next week in Grenagh? When are works starting in Bweeng. Traffic Light issues in Mallow. The new system whereby the light at Bidgestreet is red this is leading to traffic congestion in the area. Sought an update on his request for a mini roundabout at Lacknalooha.

Response: The SEE stated it is the pedestrian crossing only starting next week as a Section 38 is required for the remainder of works. Works in Bweeng a contractor has been appointed. A section 38 must be completed before works can commence. The most recent update the SEE received from the National Road Design Office is the timing on the lights were changed last night the 30th May. The lights are a work in progress due to be completed the end of next week. When all lights are synchronised, this will relieve traffic congestion in town. The SEE

said he will inform the National Road Design office of the members concerns. The SEE said he will follow up on the suggestion of a mini roundabout at Beecher Street and revert.

Cllr. Ian Doyle Funding was secured for traffic calming measures from the Milford Side to Newtown village. Speed is a huge factor. Can a temporary speed ramp be looked at in the interm. Update on park road pedestrian crossing. Railway road survey carried out what is the update on this.

Response: See response to Cllr. John Paul O'Sheas Notice of Motion the issue with speed ramps as per TII and our Corporate traffic calming policy speed ramps would be a final option. Widening footpaths and raised junctions would be a preferred option to deter speed. Park Road crossing and railway road survey were referred to the area engineer Donal O'Carroll to provide an update to members.

Cllr. Bernard Moynihan queried works in Kilbrin and the road subsiding across from Kearney's shop in Ballydesmond village. **Response:** Area Engineer will follow up.

Cllr. Pat Hayes Plaza needs to be power washed can this be done. Fords cross visibility is poor main road from Mallow to Kilbrin can the junction be looked at. **Response:** The Plaza is due to be power washed the SEE has requested this. The SEE will inspect the junction.

Cllr. Gerard Murphy Any progress on traffic calming measures in Priory Park and traffic lights on Clonfert Bridge Newmarket. Could the possibility of extending the footpath from Newmarket to Allens Bridge for pedestrian safety. Derrinagree School footpath from the school to the church very busy and dangerous road.

Response: If there is a gap in connectivity maybe the footpath could be funded under the NTA. He will inspect the bridge in Clonfert and see what can be done. He will inspect Priory Park but pointed out all other options should be considered before installing a speed ramp.

Cllr. John Paul O'Shea The pedestrian crossing flashing lights in Charleville haven't been working with two months. Tabletop required to slow traffic down.

Response: The SEE said he will investigate the lights not working on the pedestrian crossing. In relation to the tabletop ramps need to be mindful this is a bus route. A road safety audit should be carried out and a solution found.

Cllr. Liam Madden Sought an update on Bus Shelters and the made the meeting aware of an issue with a broken fence.

Response: The SEE stated that he will meet Cllr. Madden on site to ensure he knows the exact Location of the broken fence.

Mary Hayes SEO stated that there is no further update available on the Bus Shelters when available she will inform the members.

Cllr. James Kennedy Is it the same contractor we use for the traffic lights Update on the loose manhole covers.

Response: This project was put out to tender. He will speak to the town engineer in relation to

the manholes and will if possible resolve as soon as possible.

Cllr. Tony O'Shea queried the type of lights that will be used on the pedestrian crossing in Bweeng.

Response: EE Andreana Sheehan stated it is a zebra crossing at this location.

4. NOTICE OF MOTION

 a) Cllr. John Paul O'Shea 25/05/2022 "That Cork County Council update members of the extension of footpath out Scart Road, Milford out towards Garda Station".
 Proposed Cllr. John Paul O'Shea, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.

Response SEE: A survey will be undertaken by our Charleville office to assess the feasibility of installing a 2m footpath at this location without reducing the existing carriageway below the minimum standard for this given location. We will also determine the maximum width of footpath that can be constructed. If feasible, our Charleville office will prepare an application to the NTA for funding. Update will issue to members throughout the process.

b) Cllr. John Paul O'Shea 25/05/2022 "That Cork County Council would investigate the possibility of putting in place traffic calming measures in the vicinity of Newtownshandrum GAA Club, Newtown".
 Proposed Cllr. John Paul O'Shea, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.

Response SEE: Most often speeding occurs in the transition zone at the point where vehicles leave an 80km/hr and enter a 50km/hr. In the short term, an inspection will be carried out by our Charleville office to ensure speed limit signage is in good condition and clearly visible. We are all aware that it is an offence to exceed a speed limit under the Road Traffic Act's and we will also liai se with the enforcers of this act, the local gardai to request measures to be put in place to monitor speeding. We can also investigate the possibility of reducing the speed limit at this location.

Also, our Charleville office will liaise with our design team to improve pedestrian connectivity in the village and make it a safe place to commute. Once a feasible design is in place we can prepare an application to the NTA for funding. Measures such as gateways, wider footpaths and raised junctions will provide for natural calming of through traffic.

As per TII guidelines, DMURS and corporate policy on traffic calming, the selection of a speed ramp for traffic calming at initial stages is incorrect. Until such time that all traffic calming measures are exhausted shall a speed ramp be considered on trafficked roads.

c) Cllr. John Paul O'Shea 25/05/2022 "That Cork County Council would erect a height restriction barrier on the entrance to Newtownshandrum Church Car Park which I

believe is a Council owned car park". Proposed Cllr. John Paul O'Shea, Seconded Cllr. Ian Doyle.

Response SEE: Would it be possible to clarify the reasoning for this proposal as our office in Charleville have not received such a request to date. Our Charleville office will assess the cost for installation and deliver this proposal if budget allows for same. Again, pending the costs involved.

d) Cllr. Liam Madden 25/05/2022 "Following recent report on our estates re taking in charge what are Cork County Council policy in relation to maintenance of those taken over problems constantly arising is their annual reports done by Council so that programme of work is quantified or what procedures are done to manage these."
 Proposed Cllr. Liam Madden, Seconded Cllr. Gearoid Murphy.

Response SEE: As part of the taking in charge process managed by our planning department, an inspection is completed by various departments for assets that they are responsible for and a snag list prepared from each. We in roads prepare a snag list and until such time that repairs are completed by the developer to our satisfaction, do we agree to sign off on the works. Once the estate is in charge, it should be in good condition and future maintenance is treated much the same as a public road regarding inspections and response to notification of defects/emergencies. We do not have the resources available to inspect all estates on a regular basis. As we are working with a limited budget, any works other than emergency will be prioritised on the level of footfall.

- e) Cllr. Tony O'Shea 26/05/2022 "That Cork Co Council would remove the adult gym from its current Location in the park road and install it along the castle loop walk." Proposed Cllr. Tony O'Shea, Seconded Cllr. Gearoid Murphy. Response SEO Mary Hayes agrees this isn't an ideal location for the Gym, She isn't sure the River Walk is the right location either. Flooding could be an issue and debris could catch on the equipment. The SEO asked members to be mindful of the design intent for the entire area. Carokeel may be the new location. It is proposed this will be developed as an amenity for the whole town subject to funding so this may be a better location down the line.
- f) Cllr. Tony O'Shea 26/05/2022 "That Cork Co Council would improve the surface and install traffic calming through the village of Nadd."
 Proposed Cllr. Tony O'Shea, Seconded Cllr. John Paul O'Shea.

Response: I understand that the R579 is not on the approved 3 year programme for Kanturk Mallow Municipal District. In the interim of this road being added to a programme, we will look to permanently repair any isolated defects.

For a village like Nadd, it is obvious that speeding occurs in the transition zone and we will inspect the approaches to ensure that speed limit signage is in good condition and clearly visible. Again, we are all aware that it is an offence to exceed a speed limit under the Road Traffic Act's and we will liaise with the enforcers of this act, the local gardai to request measures to be put in place to monitor speeding.

We will also liaise with our road management department who will investigate the possibility of a designing a scheme that may be eligible for Low Cost Safety funding.

g) Cllr. Gearoid Murphy 27/05/2022" That Cork County Council consider upgrading the playground in Liscarroll."

Proposed Cllr. Gearoid Murphy.

Response: The MDO stated that all playgrounds are inspected and any defects are dealt with, he is unaware of any defects in Liscarroll. There is no budget to facilitate the upgrade of playgrounds.

h) Cllr. Gearoid Murphy 27/05/2022 "That a stairway footpath be installed to the left of the new footpath at the Bridge Street entrance to Mallow Town Park. This would allow ease of access to Castle Park from this entrance and would also discourage pedestrians from cutting across the grass."
 Proposed Cllr. Gearoid Murphy.

Response MDO: The pathway in place was given priority as it allows those with mobility challenges to gain access to the park. As the current route allowing universal access and due to financial constraints this was the preferred option. This is something that can be looked at in the future budget dependant.

 Cllr. Ian Doyle 29/05/2022 "That Cork County Council would in conjunction with TII resurface the southern section of N20 after pedestrian crossing in Charleville Main Street."

Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. John Paul O'Shea.

Response SEE: Funding has been made available to our Charleville office and a tender is being prepared to appoint a contractor to deliver these works.

 j) Cllr. Ian Doyle 29/05/2022 "That Cork County Council would follow up on my previous motion for crossing signage at Turrets Charleville for safety reasons" Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. John Paul O'Shea.

Response SEE: An inspection will be carried out by our Charleville office to ensure construction is in accordance with design standards and erected signage being in accordance with the Traffic Signs Manual for pedestrian crossings. Amendments will be carried out on site if required.

The SEO asked if the current footpaths could be looked at as part of the active travel measures to see if any remedial works could be carried out. Key housing estates with a large footfall using those footpaths.

k) Cllr. Ian Doyle 29/05/2022 "That Cork County Council would give update on grass cutting contract for 2022."

Proposed Cllr. Ian Doyle, Seconded Cllr. James Kennedy.

Fully supported by all members, concern was expressed with the delay in commencing grass cutting. Cllr. John Paul OShea said a plan must be put in place in January to avoid a delay next year. Requested a letter issue to housing department to seek reassurance these delays will not happen again. Cllr. Tony O'Shea said that the grass must be picked up not happening with the 1st cut so need to happen with the 2nd or 3rd cut now.

Response MDO: Acutely aware of the level of representations received by the members in relation to the delays in grass cutting. We are now playing catch up to get the green areas under control. In the agreement the 1st cut was supposed to be collected. As the grass in some location is too strong collection isn't possible. A commitment has been made by the contractor it will now be collected with the 2nd cut where necessary 3rd cut. Strimming is taking place also which will continue over the 2nd and 3rd cut. The contractor is in Charleville since yesterday morning due to be finished by close of business today. Moving to Mallow next week.

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS/MATTER ARISING

Cllr. John Paul O'Shea supported by Cllr. Ian Doyle requested a plan for the Christmas Lights in Charleville and requested this item is added to a future agenda to discuss in full and ensure a plan is in place in advance of Christmas.

Response: The MDO noted the request and will look at scheduling a meeting as soon as possible.

Cllr. Liam Madden Sought an update on Carokeel and the running track. Cllr. Madden que ried the possibility of holding in person meetings going forward.

Response: The MDO stated that CCC recommend Hybrid meetings across the organisation. Annabella does not have the technology to facilitate Hybrid meetings. Equipment required was ordered a number of months ago. The most recent update available from CCC IT dep artment is that this equipment is due for delivery the end of July.

Response: Two submissions received as part of the Public Consultation Process for Carokeel. CCC is engaging with the clubs that made the submissions in terms of layout. waiting on the club's feedback this is dependent on when the clubs get back to us. If possible will update members in July.

Cllr. Tony O'Shea Sought an update on outstanding Motions back of Beecher Street houses and the overgrown area. The stone jutting out at the back of O'Connor Undertakers. **Response:** The MDO sated that he understood some works were carried out at the back of Beecher Street. He will look into it see what was done.

Response: The SEE stated that he will carry out a site inspection. He will liase with Cllr. O'Shea and come up with a solution.

Cllr. Pat Hayes Manhole covers before the Spa Bar, keeping residents awake at night.

Response: The SEE stated he will contact Cllr. Hayes to identify the exact location of the manholes and if possible he will resolve this issue.

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Kanturk/Mallow AGM will take place on Friday the 1st July at 10 a.m. The next monthly meeting of the Kanturk/Mallow Municipal District will take place on Friday, July at 10.30 a.m. 2022 – Venue to be confirmed.

Signed: _____

.

Date: _____

CHAIRPERSON